ANNE 2664 Riva Road, P.O. Box 6675
Annapolis, MD 21401

ARUNDEL 410-222-7450
COUNTY

M ARYLAND
Office of Planning and Zoning

Jason M. Schwier
Chair, Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee

November 8, 2023

Ms. Jenny Jarkowski

Anne Arundel County Office of Planning and Zoning
2664 Riva Road, 4th Floor

Annapolis, MD 21401

Re: Comments on proposed Odenton MARC Station Parking Garage, at 1151 Town Center
Boulevard

Dear Ms. Jarkowski:

This letter constitutes a response by the Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee (OTCAC) to
requests from the developers of the Odenton MARC Station Parking Garage as presented to the
Committee on October 24, 2023. Construction of this multi-level garage located at 1151 Town
Center Boulevard in Odenton, MD will provide approximately 1,000 parking spaces and access
for public transportation. The project is located within the OTC-COR subarea, Regulatory Block
1 of the Odenton Town Center and is classified for West Core Mix usage. The Committee
recommends approval of the proposed development project and five proposed modification
requests to the Odenton Town Center Master Plan (OTCMP). The Committee, however, declined
to hold an opinion on five additional modification requests related to the Anne Arundel County
Code, which are outside the scope of the OTCMP.

The developers provided the presentation of the garage plan at a community meeting of the
OTCAC, which outlined the overall design of the parking structure, a summary of current
modification requests, and proffers with the current plan. The Committee particularly
appreciated the provided art and solar panel proffers and requested that the County consider an
open process for submission of candidate art projects from the Odenton community, including
Fort Meade. The OTCAC also appreciates the plan’s inclusion of customer amenities, such as
wayfinding systems navigate the garage area, as required for Parksmart certification.

The applicant listed five modification requests related to the County Code and five modification
requests for the OTCMP. These ten requests in total are accompanied by ten proffers. The
OTCAC appreciates the significance of the proffers offered and approves of their consideration
when weighing the modification requests. The Committee was impressed with the balance of
proffers distributed across the entire proposal, especially those related to improving the quality
of the development for vehicles and supporting needs of pedestrians and bicyclists.
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County Specific Modification Request 1:

e Skip the Preliminary Plan stage and proceed to Site Development Plan stage
OTCAC Recommendation: No opinion
OTCAC Comment: As this request is for a modification to the County Code, it is outside
the scope of the OTCMP.

County Specific Modification Requests 2, 3:

e Removal of priority retention area specimen trees

e Landscape Manual modification to provide fewer plantings
OTCAC Recommendation: No opinion with comment
OTCAC Comment: The OTCAC noted that the requests to remove the specimen trees
and reduce the number of plantings were modifications to both the County Code and the
OTCMP. The Committee did not hold a stance with respect to the modification requests
to the Code but did provide an opinion regarding the modifications to the OTCMP, as
described below in OTCMP Modification Requests 4 and 5.

County Specific Modification Request 4:
e Deviation from the County standard infrastructure implementation of water
and sanitary lines
OTCAC Recommendation: No opinion
OTCAC Comment: As this request is for a modification to the County Code, it is outside
the scope of the OTCMP.

County Specific Modification Request 5:

e Impact 25’ non-tidal wetland buffer
OTCAC Recommendation: Sustained no opinion
OTCAC Comment: The OTCAC previously received notice of this modification need
through a presentation at our regularly scheduled meeting on July 25, 2023. The
Committee responded to this modification request in our letter dated August 2, 2023,
attached to this letter for reference. With the new presentation, the OTCAC did not find
any reason to change its previous stance noting that this modification was outside the
scope of the OTCMP.

OTCMP Modification Request 1:

e Town Center Boulevard shared-use path, parking lane, and roadway width

alterations

OTCAC Recommendation: Approve
OTCAC Comment: The Committee recommends approval of the modification because it
logically makes sense for the structure to maximize use of the available space and
provide safe pedestrian access to the site, reduce the on-street parking directly next to the
parking garage, and constrain the roadway width within the area leading to the historic
district.

OTCMP Modification Request 2:
e Allow ‘transportation, multimodal station’ to count toward ‘retail mixed use’
as a modification to the 50% first floor requirement of retail
OTCAC Recommendation: Approve of intent, with comment
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OTCAC Comment: The Committee approves of the intent of this request, which is to
receive approval to have parking spaces on the ground floor and not predominant retail in
order to support a residential/commercial Transit Oriented Development to occur
adjacent to the Parking Garage. Committee members raised the question why a new
precedent should be established to expand the definition of “retail mixed use” versus
simply obtaining a waiver for a lower percentage of required first floor retail under an
already established precedent.

OTCMP Modification Request 3:

e Streetscape landscaping order of installation
OTCAC Recommendation: Approve
OTCAC Comment: The Committee recommends approval of the modification because
they logically make sense for the structure to provide safe pedestrian access to the site
and ensure that vehicles have maximum ability to see pedestrians walking around the site
to prevent accidents.

OTCMP Modification Request 4:

e Exclude plantings in modified roadway median on Town Center Boulevard
OTCAC Recommendation: Approve
OTCAC Comment: The Committee recommends approval of the modifications because
they logically make sense for the structure to maximize use of the available space and
provide safe pedestrian access to the site.

OTCMP Modification Request 5:

e Remove two specimen trees on east side of garage
OTCAC Recommendation: Approve
OTCAC Comment: The OTCAC does not favor the removal of specimen trees. In this
specific case, the subject trees are infected with fungal growth that will eventually kill the
trees, as reported by an arborist advising the developers. Furthermore, the presentation
noted that construction in and around the specimen trees is likely to cause damage to the
tree root system in the impact zone and added that these trees are already leaning toward
the proposed structure, presenting possible hazards. The OTCAC noted that consideration
should be given to replanting similar trees elsewhere nearby.

The OTCAC recommends approval of the proposal for the Odenton MARC Parking Garage.
Committee members appreciate the opportunity to participate in the development process. Please
let us know if you need further information or have questions.

e [

Jason M. Schwier, Chair
Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee
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ANNE 2664 Riva Road, P.O. Box 6675
Annapolis, MD 21401

ARUNDEL 410-222-7450
COUNTY

M ARYLAND
Office of Planning and Zoning

Jason M. Schwier
Chair, Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee

August 2, 2023

Ms. Jenny Jarkowski

Anne Arundel County Office of Planning and Zoning
2664 Riva Road, 4th Floor

Annapolis, MD 21401

Re: Comments on Odenton Parking Garage Modification to impact a wetland buffer
Dear Ms. Jarkowski:

This letter constitutes a response by the Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee (OTCAC) to
a request made and presented to the committee on July 25, 2023 regarding a request for a
modification to the Anne Arundel County Code regarding construction impacts to a wetland
buffer. As the modification request pertains to the County Code and not the Odenton Town
Center Master Plan, the request is beyond the purview of the OTCAC. The Committee would
like to express its continued support for the Odenton Parking Garage proposed to be constructed
at the MARC Station located southeast of the intersection of MD-175 and Town Center
Boulevard.

The presentation outlined how the wetland buffer will be impacted by the equipment necessary
to construct the parking garage. The wetland buffer is not located within the Chesapeake Bay
Critical Area and approximately 3,150 square feet of the buffer will be impacted in three separate
zones. Most of the impacted areas will return to vegetation after construction is complete, but
there will be permanent impacts within two of the zones due to the probable removal of
specimen trees in one zone and the proximity of the buffer to an access road in a second zone.

Community members expressed their support for the modification request due to the specimen
trees’ rating of “fair condition” and the low likelihood of surviving critical root zone disturbance
or the stress of moving them. OTCAC members provided historical context that this wetland was
originally a stormwater management area that was converted to a wetland. Additionally, the
current wetland serves as a drainage area for the parking lot, which likely is impacting the land
far more than the physical impacts to the buffer itself.

While the OTCAC does not take a formal stance with respect to the modification request, the
Committee encourages the County to have the parking deck reach formal construction and
eventual completion. Committee members appreciate the opportunity to participate in the
development process. Please let us know if you need further information or have questions.
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Sincerely,

Jason M. Schwier, Chair
Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee
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